

THE MALLESWARAM ASSOCIATION (REGD.) ಅಹೋಸಿಯೇಷ್ಗನ್ (ಸೂಲ)

(Regd. No. 236/33-34 Dated 06-03-1934)

No. 110, 7th Cross, Malleswaram, Bangalore - 560 003 Ph: 080-42549888 / 080-23311388

e-mail: themalleswaramassociation@gmail.com website: tmaclub.in

ಖಶೇಷ್ಠ ಸರ್ವ**ಹದಸ್ಯರ ಮಹಾಸಭ**

ದಿನಾಂಕ 27–12–2020, ಭಾನುವಾರ ಮಧ್ಯಾಹ್ನ 3–00 ಘಂಟೆಗೆ

SPECIAL GENERAL BODY MEETING 27-12-2020, Sunday at 3-00 P.M.

ಮೆಮೊರಾಂಡಮ್, ಬೈಲಾ ಮತ್ತು ನಿಯಮಗಳಿಗೆ ಪ್ರಸ್ತಾಖತ ತಿದ್ದುಪಡಿಗಳು MEMORANDUM, RULES & BYE-LAWS PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO

То,	
	BOOK
	×

If undelivered, please return to :



THE MALLESWARAM ASSOCIATION (R.)

No. 110, 7th Cross, Malleswaram, Bangalore - 560 003

Ph: 080-42549888, 080-23311388

E-mail: themalleswaramassociation@gmail.com

Website: www.tmaclub.in





OFFICE BEARERS & MANAGING COMMITTEE **FOR THE YEARS 2019-2021**

MANAGING COMMITTEE

OFFICE BEARERS

-Dr. S. Kumar President

iЭ Sri. Mahadeva Gowda. M. J. Vice President

 $\dot{\circ}$ Sri. Umesh Babu Hon. Secretary

4 Sri. Kumar. M. Hon. Joint Secretary

ĊЛ Sri. CA SampathKumaran.Y.G. Hon. Treasurer

MANAGING COMMITTEE MEMBERS

- \vdash Dr. Aravind Gangappa
- 5 Sri. Arvind. P.
- $\dot{\circ}$ Sri. Madeshwar. G.
- 4 Sri. Mahesh.V. R.
- 5 Smt. Sapna Prathap Singh Sri. Narayanswamy. N.

6.

- .\ Sri. Selvakumar. M.C.
- ∞ Smt. Shobha Prakash
- 9. Sri. Vishanath. D.



\$7.00 \$1.00





Malleswaram Association (Regd.)

No 110, 7th Cross, Malleswaram, Bangalore – 560 003 Ph: 080-42549888 / 080- 23311388

e-mail: themalleswaramassociation@gmail.com website: tmaclub.in

Date: 05-12-2020

All Life and Regular Members

NOTICE FOR SPECIAL GENERAL BODY MEETING

Dear Members

per rule 4.24 & 4.25. Members are requested to attend. Sunday the 27th December 2020 at 3.00 P.M. at The Malleswaram Association to transact the following as Notice is hereby given that Special General Body Meeting of Life and Regular Members will be held on

AGENDA

- 2) Welcome by the President
- Obituary / Condolence to National Calamities/VIP's
- Confirmation of Quorum
- 3456 To read the Notice convening the Special General Body meeting.
- exiting Memorandum, Rules and Bye-laws . as per rule 7.07 To get the approval to the proposed Rules and Bye-laws with or without amendments to the
- 9 8 7 Vote of thanks.
 - National Anthem
- Adjourning SGM

By the order of the Managing Committee

(Dr.Kumar. S) President

PLEASE NOTE:

- Members are requested to be in possession of the Smart Card / Identity card and are requested to produce the same upon request. Such of those Members who have not collected their Smart card/lost/Misplaced the Identity family along with a letter to the Office immediately. card are requested to collect the same by submitting Smart Card application / Stamp size Photographs of your
- High Tea will be served after completion of the Special General Body Meeting.

2

- \odot any member shall not invalidate the meeting. Notice of the Special General Body Meeting is sent to the last known address of the member. Non receipt of such Notice by
- 4. We request you to please go through Amendment to Rules & Bye Law in Proposed column with remarks typed in Bold letters, which are in need is only circulated to members in the interest of the Association & to save the time of
- Ċ1 Due to Covid -19 Pandemic, all members are requested to follow safety precautionary measures such as Social Distancing Sanitization, Temperature Testing and wearing of masks till the completion of the SGM & to follow Government Guidelines from time to time.
- 6 Life and Regular Members only are allowed to attend the Special General Body Meeting.
- .7 All activities of the Association will be suspended on Sunday the 27th December 2020 till the completion of the Special General Body Meeting

Proposed Amendments to Memorandum, Rules &

OBITUARY

9th January 2020 To 30th November 2020. We deeply regret to announce the sad demise of the following Members who passed away from our midst during the period from





M.No.G-71	SRI. C. GOWRISHANKAR
M.No.H-03	SRI. HANUMESH. B. V.
M.No.K-107	DR. KILARA. G.
M.No.V-75	SRI. VENKATAPATHY. R.
M.No.M-82	SRI. MURALIDHAR. L.
M.No.S-95	SRI. SRINIVAS PAI. B.
M.No.S-143	SRI. SURESH. K.
M.No.B-37	DR. BHATTACHARJEE. J. P.
M.No.K-26	SRI. KRISHNAMURTHY JAHGIRDAR. M. S.
M.No.M-36	SRI. MURTHY. K. N.
M.No.S-37	SRI. SHANKAR. U. S.
M.No.S-42	SRI. SHARATHKUMAR. N. G.
M.No.R-234	SRI. RAGHAVENDRA. M

MAY THEIR SOULS REST IN PEACE



The Malleswaram Association (Regd.)

No. 110, 7th Cross, Malleswaram, Bangalore - 560 003 Ph:080-42549888/ 080-23311388

e-mail:themalleswaramassociation@gmail.com website:tmaclub.in

Special General Body Meeting, Sunday the 27th December 2020

Statement Showing Amendments to Memorandum of Association Rules & Bye-Laws

Sl.No.	Existing Rules & Bye laws	Sl. No.	Proposed Amendment to Rules & Bye laws	Remarks
1.01	The Rules and Bye-laws means those framed for the			
	Association in conformity with the Karnataka			
	Societies Act 1960			
	NAME AND LOGO,			
	i) The Association shall be called as			
	The Malleswaram Association(R)			
	ii) Logo of the The Malleswaram Association(R)			
	Established 1934			
1.02	LOCATION:			
	The Association shall be located at No. 110 (old No. 49), 7 th			
	cross, Malleswaram, Bengaluru – 560 003 in its own premises and/or at any other locations as the exigencies of			
	growth may demand.			
1.03	JURISDICTION:			
	The Jurisdiction of the Association shall be within the			
	limits of Bruhat Bengaluru Mahanagara Palike(BBMP)			
	or any other statutory body.			
1.04	LANGUAGE:			
	The business language of the Association, shall be Kannada			
	and English.			
2.0	AIMS AND OBJECTS:	2.0	AIMS AND OBJECTS:	
	a) The objects of the Association is to provide		a) The objects of the Association is to	
	means for the enlightenment of and for		provide means for the enlightenment of and for	

G

ဘ

affording recreation to its members.

- b) To create, foster and maintain friendly and cordinal relationship through sports, tournaments and competitions connected therewith and to create a healthy spirit in the country through the medium of sports.
- c) To make provisions for coaching to deserving persons in various games.
- d) To collect funds for the purpose of the Association and to utilize such funds in such manner as the Managing Committee of the Association may consider desirable for the fulfillment of the aims and objects of the Association.
- e) To afford facilities to members availing of the same, acquiring information on topics of general interest through books, magazines and the newspapers for social converse:
- f) To provide facilities for games/sports such as Badminton, Billiards, Bridge, Chess, Draughts, Table Tennis, Tennis, Swimming, Cards etc.;
- g) To develop social contacts and for mutual improvement by means of lectures, discussions and the like;
- h) To invest money and funds of the Association in such authorized securities solely for the promotion of the objects of the Association in a manner which shall deem necessary in its interest provided always that no portion of the income funds or property of the Association shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly by way of dividend, bonus, profit, or otherwise whatsoever to the Members of the Association.

affording recreation to its members.

- b) To create, foster and maintain friendly and cordinal relationship through sports, tournaments and competitions connected therewith and to create a healthy spirit in the country through the medium of sports.
- c) To make provisions for coaching to deserving persons in various games.
- d) To collect funds for the purpose of the Association and to utilize such funds in such manner as the Managing Committee of the Association may consider desirable for the fulfillment of the aims and objects of the Association.
- e) To afford facilities to members availing of the same, acquiring information on topics of general interest through books, magazines and the newspapers for social converse:
- f) To provide facilities for games/sports such as Badminton, Billiards, Bridge, Chess, Draughts, Table Tennis, Tennis, Swimming, Cards etc.;
- g) To develop social contacts and for mutual improvement by means of lectures, discussions and the like;
- h) To invest money and funds of the Association in such authorized securities solely for the promotion of the objects of the Association in a manner which shall deem necessary in its interest provided always that no portion of the income funds or property of the Association shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly by way of dividend, bonus, profit, or otherwise whatsoever to the Members of the Association

		,	
		i) To purchase, take on lease, hire or otherwise acquire any movable and/or immovable property rights or privileges necessary or convenient for the purpose of carrying out the Objects of the Association on such terms and conditions as the General Body may at its discretion deemed fit.	I) To purchase, take on lease, hire or otherwise acquire any movable and/or immovable property rights or privileges necessary or convenient for the purpose of carrying out the Objects of the Association on such terms and conditions as the General Body may at its discretion deemed fit.
		j) To mortgage, exchange, dispose of or otherwise deal with all or any part of the property or funds of the Association as the General Body may at its discretion deem fit;	j) To mortgage, exchange, dispose of or otherwise deal with all or any part of the property or funds of the Association as the General Body may at its discretion deem fit;
		k) To do all such other acts, deeds and things	k) To do all such other acts, deeds and things
		k) To do all such other acts, deeds and things as are incidental to or as the Association may deem	as are incidental to or as the Association may deem
		conducive to the attainment of the Objects specified	conducive to the attainment of the Objects specified
1		above.	above.
	2.00	DECIMITION OF TERMS	
L	3.00	DEFINITION OF TERMS: The Association shall be called "The Malleswaram	
	3.01	Association(R)	
-	3.02	"Member" shall include Life and Regular	
		members with voting rights and other categories of	
		Members without voting rights.	
	3.03	General Body shall mean and include all Life and Regular Members with voting rights.	
-	3.04	Managing Committee shall mean The	
	J.0 -1	Managing Committee of the Association	
		elected by the members of the General Body.	
-	3.05	Any Committee constituted for a specific purpose at a General	
		Meeting shall be	

	D 1 1 1 1 1 1 C 14	
	Body appropriately designated as a Committee	
	and draw its power from the General Body.	
3.06	'Office Bearers' shall mean and comprise of:	
3.00	(i) President	
	(ii) Vice President	
	(iii) Honorary Secretary	
	(iv) Honorary Joint Secretary	
	(v) Honorary Treasurer	
3.07	Rules shall mean the Rules of the Association and the	
3.07		
	Bye-laws of the Association	
3.08	Year shall mean the financial year commencing from f ^t	
	April to 31 st March of the succeeding year.	
3.09	The word ,,she / her□ shall be read synonymous with the	
3.03		
	words □his /her	
3.10	"General Body Meeting shall mean Annual General Body	
	Meeting(AGM) or Special General Body Meeting (SGM)of	
	Life Members and Regular Members.	
3.11	Meeting shall mean Regular /Special meeting of Managing	
3.11	Committee and the Meeting of any other Committee	
	constituted by the General Body	
4.00	MEMBER SUBSCRIPTION	
4.00		
	Membership Subscription as applicable from time to time as	
	decided by General Body.	
4.01	ACTIVITY SUBSCRIPTION:	
	Activity subscription will be levied by Managing Committee	
	on those members if availed as per prevailing charges.	
	the mass and as a manner as per providing the grands	
4.02	OTHER LEVIES:	
4.02		
	All category of members shall pay levies/statutory	
	payment as decided by the Government or any other	
	statutory bodies from time to time	
4.02	DEFAULTER:	
4.03		
	Defaulter means any member who has not paid the	

 ∞

	subscription or dues and other levies to the Association notified by the rules of the previous month on or before the end of the subsequent month.			
4.04	MEMBERS: CATEGORY OF MEMBERS Members of the Association shall comprise of the following categories: i) Regular Member ii) Life Member iii) Corporate Member iv) Honorary Member v) Dependent of Member: i) Spouse Member ii) Member User Card vi) Service Member vii) Short Term Temporary Members viii) Long Term Temporary Members ix) Affiliate Club Member	4.04	MEMBERS: CATEGORY OF MEMBERS Members of the Association shall comprise of the following categories: i) Regular Member ii) Life Member iii) Special Regular Member iv) Limited Period Member v) Corporate Member vi) Honorary Member vii) Dependent of Member: i) Spouse Member ii) Member User Card viii) Service Member ix) Short Term Temporary Members x) Long Term Temporary Members xi) Affiliate Club Member	4.04 new (iii) – Special Regular Member - added 4.04 new (iv) – Limited Period Member - added
4.05	REGULAR MEMBER A Regular Member is one who has been admitted in this category.			
4.06	LIFE MEMBER (i)The term "Life Member□ shall include the existing Patron, Vice-Patron. (ii)A Regular Member who has attained the age of 65 years and with minimum of 15 years of continuous membership shall be a Life Member.			
4.07	CORPORATE MEMBER Corporate establishments including professional/service establishments enjoying good standing are eligible to become Corporate Members.			

Г <u>-</u>		HONODADYMEMBED			
4	.08	HONORARY MEMBER:			
		i) The managing Committee may confer Honorary			
		membership, on such person who has attained laurels in			
		the field of sports, Arts, Literature, Cultural/Social Activities and who has attained National/International			
		repute, eminence.			
		ii)The Managing Committee may confer Honorary Membership, on such a person who holds high position			
		in various Government Departments concerning			
		jurisdiction of the Association, State, Central and local			
		authorities.			
		authorities.			
		iii) The tenure of the Honorary membership is co-			
		terminus with the tenure of the managing Committee,			
		which confers the Honorary Membership.			
4	.09	DEPENDENT MEMBER:	4.09	DEPENDENT MEMBER:	
		Category of DEPENDENT MEMBER:		Category of DEPENDENT MEMBER:	
		The following are the categories of dependent of		The following are the categories of dependent of	
10		members:		members:	
		(i) Spouse:		(i) Spouse:	
		(a) The Spouse of the member can avail all the facilities		(a) The Spouse of the member can avail all the	
		of the Association including entertaining the Guest's		facilities of the Association including entertaining	
		having a "Spouse Card" they shall not have voting		the Guest's having a "Spouse Card" they shall not	
		rights		have voting rights	
		(b) The Spouse Card is valid even after the demise of		(b) The Spouse Card is valid even after the demise	
		the members who confer it and lasts till the life time of		of the members who confer it and lasts till the life	
		the Spouse.		time of the Spouse.	
		(c) Spouse Card ceases on resignation/termination of the spouse		(c) Spouse Card ceases on resignation/termination of the spouse	
		Note: Statutory Obligation shall apply as per rule.		Note: Statutory Obligation shall apply as per	
		Troce. Statutory Obligation shan apply as per rule.		rule.	
				(ii) DEPENDENT of MEMBERS for all eligible	
		(ii) DEPENDENT of MEMBERS for all eligible		Activities only	
		Activities only		The children of Life/Regular members of the	
		The children of Life/Regular members of the		Association whose age is below twenty one (21)	
		Association whose age is below twenty one (21)		years, are eligible to be enroll as "Dependent	
		years, are eligible to be enroll as "Dependent Member		Member for Sports, Library and Cultural activities	
		for Sports, Library and Cultural activities only.		only.	

- (iii) life / Regular member during his/her tenure who has completed 15 years of continuous membership is eligible to sponsor one person of his / her choice either his/ her Son or Daughter or his/ her relative being Brother's/ Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister's Children only for admission of a Regular member, if he/she has attained 21 years of age.
- iv) Life / Regular member is also eligible to enroll one more(Second Children) of his /her Son/Daughter has a regular member on completion of Twenty (20) continuous years of membership, provided such son/daughter has completed 21 years of age.
- (v) A Life / Regular members, being a Bachelor / Spinster / Issue less members, during his/her tenure who has completed 15 years of continuous membership is eligible to sponsor one person of his choice being a "Relative" viz Brother's/ Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister's Children being blood relative as Regular Member only.
- (vi) A Member can request for issue of a "USER CARD" to any of his / her children to use the facilities of the Association. Such user facility is given at the discretion of the Managing Committee. A non refundable Admission Fees of Rs.5,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand only) and a monthly subscription Fees of Rs.500/- (Five Hundred per month) shall be levied for such a "User Card" depending upon the facilities being used , appropriate fees etc., specified for the facility will also needs to be paid. Such User Card is issued only to the persons above the age of 21 years. They are not eligible to bring guests. However, they are eligible to bring their spouse & their children.

Note: The above facility shall be effective till the demise / resignation of the primary membership.

- (iii) life / Regular member during his/her tenure who has completed 15 years of continuous membership is eligible to sponsor one person of his / her choice either his/ her Son or Daughter for admission of a Regular member, if he/she has attained 21 years of age.
- iv) Life / Regular member is also eligible to enroll one more(Second Children) of his /her Son/Daughter has a regular member on completion of Twenty (20) continuous years of membership, provided such son/daughter has completed 21 years of age.
- (v) A Life / Regular members, being a Bachelor / Spinster / Issue less members, during his/her tenure who has completed 15 years of continuous membership is eligible to sponsor **only** one person of his choice being a "Relative" viz Brother's/Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister's Children being blood relative as Regular Member only.
- (vi) A Member **admitted** as Regular Member can request for issue of a "USER CARD" to any of his / her children to use the facilities of the Association. Such user facility is given at the discretion of the Managing Committee. A non refundable Admission Fees of Rs.5,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand only) and a monthly subscription Fees of Rs.500/- (Five Hundred per month) shall be levied for such a "User Card" depending upon the facilities being used , appropriate fees etc., specified for the facility will also needs to be paid. Such User Card is issued only to the persons above the age of 21 years. They are not eligible to bring guests. However, they are eligible to bring their spouse & their children.

Note: The above facility shall be effective till the demise / resignation of the primary membership. 4.09 (iii) or his/ her relative being Brother's/ Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister's Children only- Deleted

(v) only added

(vi) admitted as Regular Member - added

4.10	i) The Managing Committee may at its discretion admit as service member, officials holding minimum gazetted or equivalent rank from Local Area, Civic, State, Central, and Quasi Government Departments/ Undertakings;			
	(ii) The managing Committee may confer Service membership, on such person who holds Responsible position in various Government Departments concerning jurisdiction of the Association, State, Central and local Authority.			
	(iii) The tenure of the service member shall be reviewed depending upon his/her being available in the area of operation and may be extended at the discretion of the Managing Committee. The Managing Committee can exempt Service Members from paying subscription and cover charges at the discretion of the Managing Committee.			
	Note: Service Members are entitled to bring Guest			
4.11	A. SHORT TERM TEMPORARY MEMBER (STTM) i) The Managing Committee may at its discretion admit person/s as Short Term temporary member for utilization of specified facilities such as Cards and Sports facilities of the Association, on payment of fees as prescribed from time to time. ii) The tenure of a Short Term temporary member shall be for a period of Six (6) months, The same may be renewed from time to time subject to the conduct of the STTM.	4.11	A. SHORT TERM TEMPORARY MEMBER (STTM) i) The Managing Committee may at its discretion admit person/s as Short Term temporary member for utilization of specified facilities such as Cards and Sports facilities of the Association, on payment of fees as prescribed from time to time. ii) The tenure of a Short Term temporary member shall be for a period of Six (6) months, The same may be renewed from time to time subject to the conduct of the STTM.	

4.12	B. LONG TERM TEMPORARY MEMBER (LTTM) The Long term temporary member is admitted at the discretion of the Managing Committee and shall be for maximum period of Three (3) years. AFFILIATED CLUB MEMBER.		B. LONG TERM TEMPORARY MEMBER (LTTM) The Long term temporary member is admitted at the discretion of the Managing Committee and shall be for maximum period of Three (3) years.	
4.12	Member of an affiliated club of the Association shall be entitled to use the facilities of the Association on reciprocal basis subject to all payments being made in advance			
4.13	MEMBERS RIGHT AND PRIVILEGES: 1. A. Life Member or Regular Member: Life or Regular member is eligible to propose more than one REGULAR, LTTM AND STTM member in a year.	4.13		
	B. SPONSORED MEMBER (a) life / Regular member during his/her tenure who has completed 15 years of continuous membership is eligible to sponsor one person of his / her choice either his/her Son or Daughter or his/ her relative being Brother's/ Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister's Children only for admission of a Regular member, if he/she has attained 21 years of age.		B.SPONSORED MEMBER (a) Life / Regular member during his/her tenure who has completed 15 years of continuous membership is eligible to sponsor one person of his / her choice either his/her Son or Daughter for admission of a Regular member, if he/she has attained 21 years of age.	4.13 B (a) or his/ her relative being Brother's/ Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister's Children only- Deleted & redrafted
	(b) Life / Regular member is also eligible to enroll one more(Second Children) of his /her Son/Daughter has a regular member on completion of Twenty (20) continuous years of membership, provided such son/daughter has completed 21 years of age.		(b) Life / Regular member is also eligible to enroll one more(Second Children) of his /her Son/Daughter has a regular member on completion of Twenty (20) continuous years of membership, provided such son/daughter has completed 21 years of age.	
	(c) Once the admission is completed by the Managing Committee, the candidates shall become regular members of the Association from the date of their admission subject to payment of specified admission fee subscription taxes etc., before availing any of the facilities of the Association.		(c) Once the admission is completed by the Managing Committee, the candidates shall become regular members of the Association from the date of their admission subject to payment of specified admission fee subscription taxes etc., befor availing any of the facilities of the Association.	

- (d)The admission of such Son/Daughter shall be subject to the admission processes as laid down elsewhere as part of rules.
- (e) All such admitted members shall become voting members from next General Body meeting, through listing of the name of the Sponsor & the new member for information.
- (f) A Life / Regular members, being a Bachelor / Spinster / Issue less members, during his/her tenure who completed 15 years of continuous membership is eligible to sponsor one person of his / her choice being a "Relative" viz Brother's/ Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister's Children being blood relative as Regular Member only.

Note: However such of these members shall not have the right to nominate any person to those member who have not nominated shall be considered for sponsorship.

2. Nomination:

- (i) A Life or Regular member may nominate spouse or one of his / her children or his/her relative and also has the right to change the nomination at any time during his / her membership is eligible for admission as a Regular member, on demise of nominating member.

 Note: relative viz Brother's/ Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister's Children being blood relative as Regular Member only.
- ii. A Life /Regular Member being a bachelor /Spinster/has no issues can nominate one person of his/her relative to be eligible for admission as a regular member on his/her demise.
- iii. Nomination must be registered by the Member with the Association during his / her membership.

- (d)The admission of such Son/Daughter shall be subject to the admission processes as laid down elsewhere as part of rules.
- (e) All such admitted members shall become voting members from next General Body meeting, through listing of the name of the Sponsor & the new member for information.
- (f) A Life / Regular members, being a Bachelor / Spinster / Issue less members, during his/her tenure who completed 15 years of continuous membership is eligible to sponsor one person of his / her choice being a "Relative" viz Brother's/ Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister's Children being blood relative as Regular Member only.

Note: However such of these members shall not have the right to nominate any person to those member who have not nominated shall be considered for sponsorship.

2. Nomination:

- (i) A Life or Regular member may nominate spouse or one of his/her children and also has the right to change the nomination at any time during his/her membership is eligible for admission as a Regular member, on demise of nominating member.
- ii. A Life /Regular Member being a bachelor /Spinster/has no issues can nominate one person of his/her relative to be eligible for admission as a regular member on his/her demise.
- iii. Nomination must be registered by the Member with the Association during his / her membership.

OLD 4.13 (2) (i) or his/her relative - Deleted & redrafted

Old 4.13 (2) (i) Note: relative viz Brother's/ Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister's Children being blood relative as Regular Member only - Deleted iv. The payment of admission fees in case of nomination on demise of a member is rupees Ten thousand (Rs.10,000/-) only.

Note: (i)This is subject to the condition that the Nominee so named, shall exercise his/her membership claim in writing to the Hon. Secretary of the Association in accordance with the rule within one year from the date of demise of the member.

(ii) This facility is not available to those members who have enrolled two children as member.

3. Transfer:

i. Any Life/Regular member is eligible to transfer his/her membership to one person of his/her relative, to be admitted as Regular member is available to those members whose Spouse or Children have not availed permanent membership.

ii The Life / Regular member who has so transferred his/her membership automatically ceases to be a member of the Association, from the date the transfer becomes effective.

iii. The payment of admission fees in case of transfer /nomination on demise of a member is rupees Ten thousand(Rs.10,000/-) only and in case of transfer by the member in their tenure is Rupees Twenty Five Thousand (Rs.25,000/-) and levies as applicable.

iv. The member on nomination/transfer cannot transfer his/her membership for a period of Ten (10) years.

iv. The payment of admission fees in case of nomination on demise of a member is rupees Ten thousand (Rs.10,000/-) only.

Note: (i) This is subject to the condition that the Nominee so named, shall exercise his/her membership claim in writing to the Hon. Secretary of the Association in accordance with the rule within one year from the date of demise of the member.

(ii) This facility is not available to those members who have enrolled two children as member.

3. Transfer:

i. Any Life/Regular member is eligible to transfer his/her membership to one person of his/her relative, to be admitted as Regular member is available to those members whose Spouse or Children have not availed permanent membership.

ii. A Life / Regular Members being a bachelor / Spinster / Issue Less Members, during his or her tenure who has completed 15 years of continuous shall be eligible to transfer the Membership to any of his relative viz. Brother's / Brother's Children, Sister's / Sister children being blood relative as regular Member and can avail the benefit of Membership for his or her legal heirs.

iii The Life / Regular member who has so transferred his/her membership automatically ceases to be a member of the Association, from the date the transfer becomes effective.

iv. The payment of admission fees in case of transfer /nomination on demise of a member is

4.13 (3) new (ii) added

4

4. Resignation:

- (a) A Life/Regular Member can resign and avail Rupees Two lakh (Rs.2 Lakh) only
- (b) Resignation is subject to the following conditions:
- (i) Golden Handshake A Members are eligible for this facility resignation being approved by the Managing Committee and the funds shall be given by the capital fund.
- (ii) Any Regular/life member, who has been a member continuously for 10 years, may voluntarily resign to his/her membership of the Association.
- (iii) His/her resignation letter is addressed to the Hon. Secretary.
- (iv) All service and facilities shall be stopped immediately on his/her resignation is accepted.
- (v). He/she settles all dues to the Association.
- (vi), The Association shall display on the Notice board the resignation of the member.
- (vii). The member so resigning shall not be eligible for re-admission.

rupees Ten thousand(Rs.10,000/-) only and in case of transfer by the member in their tenure is Rupees Twenty Five Thousand (Rs.25,000/-) and levies as applicable.

v. The member on nomination/transfer cannot transfer his/her membership for a period of Ten (10)years.

4. Resignation:

- (a) A Life/Regular Member can resign and avail Rupees One Lakh (Rs.1 Lakh) only
- (b) Resignation is subject to the following conditions:
- (i) Golden Handshake A Members are eligible for this facility resignation being approved by the Managing Committee and the funds shall be given by the capital fund.
- (ii) Any Regular/life member, who has been a member continuously for 10 years, may voluntarily resign to his/her membership of the Association.
- (iii) His/her resignation letter is addressed to the Hon. Secretary.
- (iv) All service and facilities shall be stopped immediately on his/her resignation is accepted.
- (v). He/she settles all dues to the Association.
- (vi), The Association shall display on the Notice board the resignation of the member.
- (vii). The member so resigning shall not be eligible for re-admission.

Old 4.13 (4) (a) redrafted – Golden Handshake benefit reduced from Rs. 2 Lakhs To Rs. 1 Lakh.

(viii) Number of member on resignation be given Golden Handshake restricting 12 applicants per year subject to intake of New membership as per rule. Further clearance of pending resignation membership acceptance application will be subject to the availability of this fund created under the head "New Membership admission fund".

5. Corporate Member:

- i). The tenure of Corporate Membership shall be for ten (10) years from the date of admission.
- (ii). A corporate member may nominate not more than three (3) persons of the corporate office to avail the facility of the Association. The nomination of persons from time to time will be at the discretion of the corporate member.
- (iii). Corporate membership can be extended only to the organization having more than Ten (10) years of standing and having a turnover of Rupees Ten (Rs.10) Crores per annum, with a minimum paid up capital of Rupees Fifty Lakhs (Rs. 50,00,000/-) only.

6. Honorary Member

The tenure of the Honorary membership is co-terminus with the tenure of the managing Committee, which confers the Honorary Membership.

Confirmation of the membership is at the discretion of the Managing Committee.

7. SERVICE MEMBERS.

The admission of such members shall be considered on the specific application of the official concerned and tenure of such membership, shall be co-terminus with the tenure of office in the area or co-terminus with term of Managing Committee.

- (viii) Number of member on resignation be given Golden Handshake restricting 12 applicants per year subject to intake of New membership as per rule. Further clearance of pending resignation membership acceptance application will be subject to the availability of this fund created under the head "New Membership admission fund".
- (ix) Those Regular /Life Member who have availed Dependent Membership (Regular Membership) for their children as per rule 4.09 (iii) & (iv) are not eligible for Golden Handshake benefit.

New Clause (ix) added

8. SHORT TERM TEMPORARAY MEMBER: (STTM)

- i) The Managing Committee may at its discretion admit persons as Short Term Temporary members for utilization of Cards and Sports facilities of the Association, on payment of charges as prescribed from time to time.
- ii) STTM shall not have voting right.
- iii) The tenure of a temporary member shall be for a maximum period of six (6) months.
- iv) In the event of any complaint the action will be taken and he/ she may be terminated

9.LONG TERM TEMPORARY MEMBERSHIP(LTTM)

- (i) The Long Term Temporary membership will be issued on payment of Rupees One Lakh (Rs.1,00,000/-) only admission fee and shall be for maximum period of Three (3) Years. The Managing Committee is empowered to renew the LTTM Membership as per rules and after looking into the conduct of the LTTM Member The admission fee so collected is non-refundable.
- (ii) Long Term Temporary members can utilize all facility during their tenure by paying subscription as defined in subscription column. Activities fees will be as applicable to regular member from time to time if they avail.

8. SHORT TERM TEMPORARAY MEMBER: (STTM)

- i) The Managing Committee may at its discretion admit persons as Short Term Temporary members for utilization of Cards and Sports facilities of the Association, on payment of charges as prescribed from time to time.
- ii) STTM shall not have voting right.
- iii) The tenure of a temporary member shall be for a maximum period of six (6) months. It can be renewed at the discretion of the Managing Committee for one more term only.
- iv) In the event of any complaint the action will be taken and he/ she may be terminated

9.LONG TERM TEMPORARY MEMBERSHIP(LTTM)

- (i) The Long Term Temporary membership will be issued on payment of Rupees Fifty Thousand (Rs.50,000/-) only as admission fee and shall be for maximum period of Three (3) Years. The Managing Committee is empowered to renew the LTTM Membership as per rules, after looking into the conduct of the LTTM Member. The admission fee so collected is non-refundable.
- (ii) LTTM Membership can be renewed at the discretion of the Managing Committee for one more term only.

4.13 (8) (iii) newly added & redrafted

Old 4.19 (9) (i) Admission Fees Reduced from Rs.1 lakh To Rs. 50,000/-& redrafted

4.19 (9) (ii) newly added

		(iii) The LTTM members will not have voting rights,	(iii) Long Term Temporary members can utilize	
		they are not entitled to attend AGM's/SGM's of the	all facility during their tenure by paying	
		Association.	subscription as defined in subscription column.	
			Activities fees will be as applicable to regular	
		Note: Admission fees and Subscription fees defined in	member from time to time if they avail.	
		admission & subscription column	(iv) The LTTM members will not have veting	
			(iv)) The LTTM members will not have voting rights, they are not entitled to attend	
			AGM's/SGM's of the Association.	
			Adivi s/3divi s of the Association.	
			Note: Admission fees and Subscription fees	
			defined in admission & subscription column	
			F	
		10. AFFILIATED CLUB MEMBER:		
		a) They are not entitled to bring guest.		
		b). In the event of such member misbehaving in the		
19		association premises the action will be taken and the same		
		will be reported to the principal club in this regard.		
		c) The affiliated club member shall utilize the facility of the		
		Association only 4 times in a month and 48 times in a year,		
		restricted to 4 days continuously at a time.		
	4.14	LIMITATION OF MEMBERSHIP		
		No individual shall be a member under more than one		
		category except as a nominee of a Corporate. When admitted		
		to any other category he/she shall relinquish the existing membership.		
		memoeromp.		

4.15 LIMIT ON NUMBER OF MEMBERS

Sl.No.	CATEGORY	Max. No
i)	Life/Regular	1800
	Member	
ii)	Corporate	50
	Member	
iii)	Honorary	25
	Member	
iv)	Dependent of	No Limit
	Member	At the discretion of
	/Sponsored	the Managing
	Member	Committee
v)	Service	50
	Member	
vi)	a). STTM	100
	b)LTTM	200

Rule:

vii)The Limit of Life/Regular membership shall be maximum 1800 is not applicable for the sponsored membership to member children as regular member.

viii) Admission of Regular members permitted by the General Body for Capital Projects shall also be in addition to this limit.

Note: All Admission fee is non refundable

4.15 LIMIT ON NUMBER OF MEMBERS

Sl.No.	CATEGORY	Max. No
i)	Life/Regular	1800
	Member	
ii)	Special	150
	Regular	
	Member	
iii)	Limited Period	100
	Member	
iv)	Corporate	50
	Member	
v)	Honorary	25
	Member	
vi)	Dependent of	No Limit
	Member	At the discretion of
	/Sponsored	the Managing
	Member	Committee
vii)	Service	50
	Member	
viii)	a). STTM	100
	b)LTTM	200

Rule:

ix)The Limit of Life/Regular membership shall be maximum 1800 is not applicable for the sponsored membership to member children as regular member.

- x) The Limit of Special Regular member shall be maximum of 150 only. Refer Rule 4.16 (B).
- xi) The Limit of Limited Priod Member shall be maximum of 100 only. Refer Rule 4.16(C).
- xii) Admission of Regular members permitted by the General Body for Capital Projects shall also be in addition to this limit.

Note: All Admission fee is non refundable

- 4.15 New (Sl.No.ii) new 150 Nos. Special Regular Member Added
- 4.15 New (Sl. No.iii) new 100 Nos. Limited Period Member added

4.15 New Rule: (x) & (xi) added

4.	16 ADMISSION I	FEES		4.16	ADMISSION FEE	S		
	Category	Admission Fee to be paid with application	Admission Fee to be paid with application		Category	Admission Fee to be paid with application	Admission Fee to be paid After approval of Provisional Membership	4.16 Admission Fees Terms redrafted
	Regular Member Admission Fees: Rs.6 (six) Lakhs	(In Rupees) 3 Lakhs OR 1.5 Lakhs	3 Lakhs OR 4.5 lakhs to be paid in three (3) installments of Rs.1.5 lakhs for		Regular Membership Admission Fees: (One Time Payment) Rs.6 (six) Lakhs Regular Membership Admission Fees for Rs.6 lakhs ,(on Installment Basis) opted for One (1) Year	(In Rupees) 3 Lakhs (Down Payment) OR 1.5 Lakhs (Down Payment)	(In Rupees) 3 Lakhs (Balance Admission Fees) OR Balance admission fees of 4.5 lakhs to be paid in three (3) installments of Rs.1.5 lakhs for every three (3) months after approval of Provisional Membership	
21	SPONSORED MEM	BER Nil	every three (3) months after approval of provisional membership 10,000/-		Special Regular Membership Admission Fees (One Time Payment) Rs.4 Lakhs	2 Lakhs (Down Payment)	2 Lakhs (Balance Admission Fees)	4.16 Special Regular Membership –
	a) Dependent Spon Member (Regular Member) First Son / Daughte b. Second Son/daug to be enrolled(Regu	sor ghter -	10,000/-		Special Regular Membership Admission Fees for Rs.4 Lakhs,, (on Installment Basis) opted for six(6) months	2 Lakhs (Down Payment)	Balance Admission Fees of Rs. 2 Lakhs to be paid in Two(2) installments of Rs.1 Lakh for every Three (3) months after approval of	Admission Fees of Rs. 4 Lakhs (Rupees Four Lakhs) only-added
	Member) Transfer of Member Fees in their tenure,	rship 25,000/-	Nil		Refer Note: (B)	2 Lakhs	Provisional Membership 2 Lakhs	
	to Son/Daughter Transfer/Nomination Membership on der of a member Corporate member	nise	10 Lakhs		Membership Admission Fees (One Time Payment) Rs.4 Lakhs	(Down Payment)	(Balance Admission Fees)	4.16 Note: Limited Period Member - Admission fees
	Service Member a) Rupees One lakl	nonths along with	Nil (Rs.1,50,000) to be judicable taxes til		Limited Period Membership Fees for Rs.4 Lakhs , (on Installment Basis)	OR 2 lakhs (Down Payment)	OR Balance Admission Fees of 2 Lakhs to be paid in Two (2) Installments of Rs.1,00,000/- for every	of Rs.4 Lakhs for 12 Year Membership only added Old 4.16 (a) deleted & redrafted
	applicant be admit	ted as member, the ive Hundred (Rs.:	hereafter till then the 500/-) per month as	y	opted for One (1) year) - 12 Years Membership only refer Note: (C)		Six (6)months after approval of provisional Limited Period Membership	Old 4.16 (a) & (b) deleted

22	All Taxes and levis are extra as applicable. b) No interest shall be payable on the admission fee paid along with the application .It is non refundable except in case of death of the applicant or withdrawal or rejection of the application.	SPONSORED Nil 10,000/-
Rs.1.5 lakhs for Rupees Six (6) Lakh applicant / member (Rs.500/-) per month admission is paid, the subscription fees as Other utility charge Member fees, if avaAll Taxes or levis a b) In the event of		Rs.1.5 lakhs for every three (3) months till Rupees Six (6) Lakhs admission fees is paid. Such applicant / member shall pay Rupees Five Hundred (Rs.500/-) per month as subscription till entire admission is paid, thereafter, they have to pay their

installment within the stipulated period of time, the Membership of such of those members shall be withheld till the payment of the admission fees in full and said members shall be restrained from utilizing the facilities of the Association. c) No interest shall be payable on the admission fee paid along with the application. The admission fees is non refundable. Up on demise of any such provisional members within the equated installment period, 50 % of the admission fees paid shall be refundable to the surviving legal heirs as per law subject to deductions of all taxes. In the event of the application of the Provisional Membership is rejected by the Managing Committee or Withdrawn by the applicant, in such circumstances the admission fees paid by such applicant shall be refunded. 4.16 New B. Special B. Special Regular Membership. **Terms & Conditions:** Regular Membership on **Installment Basis Terms** a. Special Regular Membership maximum of 150 & Conditions (a), (b), (c), Nos. will be taken for Rs.4 Lakhs (Rupees Four (d), (e) & (f) added with Lakhs Only) with a subscription of Rs.150/- as per reduced rate of rule from time to time to get surplus in admission Admission fees of fees to over come the crisis of the Financial position of the Association due to Covid-19 Pandemic & for Rs.4 Lakhs (Rupees the upliftment of the Association. Four Lakhs) only. The Special Membership b) This Special Regular Membership will be issued to be taken within only for maximum of 6 (Six months) after 6 months after approval of Bye law amendment from RCS. approval of proposed amendment from RCS c) After Completion of 6(Six Months), the Special Regular Membership for Rs.4 Lakhs (Four Lakhs)will be stopped immediately. d) The Provisional Special Regular Membership applicants opting for Installment basis shall have to

24	pay Rs.2 Lakhs & taxes along with the application. After approval of Provisional Special Regular membership Balance Rs. 2 Lakhs (Rupees Two Lakhs) & taxes shall be paid in Two (2) installments of Rs.10000/- (Rupees One Lakh only) for every Three (3) months till Rupees Four (4) Lakhs admission fees is paid. Such applicant / Provisional Special Regular Member shall pay Rupees Five Hundred (Rs.500/-) per month as subscription till erire admission is paid, thereafter, they have to pay their subscription fees as Regular member as per rule. Other utility charges will be applicable as Regular Member fees, if availed. e) In the event of the Special Regular Member fees, if aliling to pay the equated monthly installment within the stipulated period of time, the Membership of such of those members shall be withheld till the payment of the admission fees in full and said members shall be restrained from utilizing the facilities of the Association. f) No interest shall be payable on the admission fee paid along with the application. The admission fees in non refundable. Up a demise of any such provisional Special Regular Member within the equated installment period, 50 % of the admission fees yield shall be refundable to the surviving legal heirs as per law subject to deductions of all taxes. In the event of the application of the Provisional Membership is rejected by the Managing Committee or Withdrawn by the applicant, in such circumstances the admission fees paid by such applicant shall be refunded.	
	All Taxes or levis are extra as applicable.	

25	C. Provisional Limited Period Membership on Installment Basis: Terms & Conditions: a) Maximum 100 Limited Period Members will be taken with Non refundable Admission Fees for Rs.4 lakhs only with validity of 12 years (Twelve Years) from the date of admission without voting rights. The Limited Period Membership shall be non transferable. b) The Limited Period Members shall have the option of opting Permanent Membership of the Association by paying addition of Rs.2 Lakhs (Two Lakhs only) apart from Rs.4 Lakhs paid, totaling to Rs.6 Lakhs (Rupees Six Lakhs only), on or before completion of 10 years from the date of admission of Limited Period Membership). c) Seniority of Such of those members who have opted for Permanent Membership shall be deemed to be effective from the date of Permanent Membership.	4.16 New C. Provisional Limited Period Membership On Installment Basis - Admission fees of Rs.4 Lakhs (Rupees Four Lakhs) only for 12 Years Membership Terms & Conditions (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g) & (h) -ADDED
	d) The Provisional Limited Period Membership applicants opting for Installment basis shall have to pay Rs.2 Lakhs & taxes along with the application. After approval of Provisional Limited Period membership Balance Rs. 2 Lakhs (Rupees Two Lakhs) & taxes shall be paid in Two (2) installments of Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh only) for every Six (6) months till Rupees Four (4) Lakhs admission fees is paid. Such applicant / Limited Period member shall pay Rupees Five Hundred (Rs.500/-) per month as subscription till entire admission is paid, thereafter, they have to pay their subscription fees as Regular member as per rule. Other utility charges will be applicable as Regular Member fees, if availedAll Taxes or lev is are extra as applicable.	

Þ	ĸ	
	7	٠

OTHER CATEGORY CHARGES:

CATEGORY Admission Fees STTM for 6 months Swimming Non Refundable STTM for 6 months Shuttle Badminton/Cards/ Tennis/ Table Tennis / Billiards LTTM for 3 years Admission Fees 5000/- Refundable 5000/- Refundable	LTTM/ STTM ADMISSION FEES	:
STTM for 6 months Swimming Swimming STTM for 6 months STTM for 6 months Shuttle Badminton/Cards/ Tennis/ Table Tennis / Billiards	CATEGORY	Admission
Swimming Non Refundable STTM for 6 months Shuttle Refundable Badminton/Cards/ Tennis/ Table Tennis / Billiards		Fees
Refundable STTM for 6 months Shuttle Badminton/Cards/ Tennis/ Table Tennis / Billiards	STTM for 6 months	5000/-
STTM for 6 months Shuttle Badminton/Cards/ Tennis/ Table Tennis / Billiards	Swimming	Non
Shuttle Refundable Badminton/Cards/ Tennis/ Table Tennis / Billiards	_	Refundable
Badminton/Cards/ Tennis/ Table Tennis / Billiards	STTM for 6 months	5000/-
Tennis/ Table Tennis / Billiards	Shuttle	Refundable
Table Tennis / Billiards	Badminton/Cards/	
,	Tennis/	
LTTM for 3 years 1 lakh	Table Tennis / Billiards	
	LTTM for 3 years	1 lakh
(Non		(Non
Refundable		Refundable

e) In the event of the Provisional Limited Period member failing to pay the equated monthly installment within the stipulated period of time, the Membership of such of those members shall be withheld till the payment of the admission fees in full and said members shall be restrained from utilizing the facilities of the Association.

f) No interest shall be payable on the admission fee paid along with the application. The admission fees is non refundable. Up on demise of any such provisional Limited Period members within the equated installment period, 50 % of the admission fees paid shall be refundable to the surviving legal heirs as per law subject to deductions of all taxes. In the event of the application of the Provisional Membership is rejected by the Managing Committee or Withdrawn by the applicant, in such circumstances the admission fees paid by such applicant shall be refunded.

- g) The Limited Period Member during hi/her tenure is not eligible to sponsor Dependent Membership to their Son/Daughter who has attained 21 years of
- h) The Limited Period Member during his/hr tenure is not eligible for Golden Handshake as per rule.

OTHER CATEGORY CHARGES:

LTTM/ STTM ADMISSION FEES	:
CATEGORY	Admission
	Fees
STTM for 6 months	5000/-
Swimming	Non
_	Refundable
STTM for 6 months 17	5000/-
years & above	Refundable
Shuttle	
Badminton/Cards/	
Tennis/	
Table Tennis/Billiards	
LTTM for 3 years	50,000/ -
	(Non
	Refundable

STTM for 6 months only for 17 years of age &above for sports section such as Shuttle Badminton / Tennis/Table Tennis/ Billiards- added

LTTM for 3 years Rs.1 Lakh admission fees non refundable reduced to Rs.50,000/ - as non refundable

6.01 <u>BYE-LAWS</u> SUBSCRIPTION:

The monthly subscription payable by each of the category Member shall be as per the table below:

Category	Monthly
cutogory	Subscription
	Rupees
Regular member	150/-
Cover Charges	100/-
(includes Regular, Dependent	
Sponsored Member &	
LTTM) Members	
Life Member	Nil
Corporate member	1000/-
Service member	250/-
Sponsor Member/ Member of	150/-
Bachelor/Spinster/No Issue	
Dependent Member User	500/-
Card	
Above 21 Years of age	

OTHER CATEGORY CHARGES:

LTTM - Subscription	500/-
STTM: for 6 months	
Subscription/Monthly	500/-
Usage Charges/Monthly	500/-

Note: All Taxes and levis are extra as applicable.

a) Monthly Subscription will be included in the Bill including Bar/Catering/Departmental facility in a financial year.(except member subscription). They may utilize the Bar, Canteen, Chats & other departments where subscription is applicable.

6.01 <u>BYE-LAWS</u> SUBSCRIPTION:

The monthly subscription payable by each of the category Member shall be as per the table below:

Monthly
Subscription
Rupees
150/-
100/-
Nil
150/-
150/-
1000/-
250/-
150/-
500/-

OTHER CATEGORY CHARGES:

500/-
500/-
500/-

Note: All Taxes and levis are extra as applicable.

 a) Monthly Subscription will be included in the Bill including Bar/Catering/Departmental facility in a financial year.(except member Cover Charges Rs.100/added to Life Members, Senior Members, Special Regular Member & Limited Period Member

6.01 Subscription Rs.150/ added to Special Regular Member

6.01 Subscription Rs.150/ added toLimited Period Member

	b)	Regular, Dependent Sponsored Members including Sponsor Member of Bachelor/Spinster/No Issue, User Card shall pay Rs.100/- per month as cover charges if they do not utilize Bar/Catering/Departmental facility in a calendar month.(except member subscription). They may utilize the Bar, Canteen, Chats & other departments where subscription are applicable.	b)	subscription). They may utilize the Bar, Canteen, Chats & other departments where subscription is applicable. Life Members, Senior Members, Regular Members, Special Regular Member, Limited Period Member, Dependent Sponsored Members including Sponsor Member of Bachelor/Spinster/No Issue, User Card shall pay Rs.100/- per month as cover charges if they do not utilize Bar/Catering/Departmental facility in a calendar month.(except member subscription). They may utilize the Bar, Canteen, Chats & other departments where subscription are applicable.
28	c)	Cover charges to Life, Senior Members who have completed an age of sixty five (65) years is exempted.		- -
	d)	STTM have to pay Rs.500/- subscription Fees & usage charges of Rs.500/- every month for a period of 6 months. Note: STTM Admission is subject to discretion of the Managing Committee.	c)	STTM have to pay Rs.500/ subscription Fees & usage charges of Rs.500/ every month for a period of 6 months.
				ote: STTM Admission is subject to scretion of the Managing Committee.
		****		****

6.01 Note: (b) Cover Charges Rs.100/- added to

Period Member

(c) deleted

Life Members, Senior Members, Special Regular Member & Limited

6.01 Subscription Note: old